
 
NEVADA ASSOCIATION OF COUNTIES (NACO) 

Annual Business Meeting 
September 28, 2022, 8:00a.m. 

Storey County Courthouse Slammer 
26 South B Street 

Virginia City, NV 89440 
 
NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC: 
The public may provide public comment in advance of a meeting by written submission to the following email 
address: info@nvnaco.org For inclusion or reference in the minutes of the meeting, your public comment 
must include your full name and be submitted via email by not later than 3:00 p.m. the day before the 
meeting. Due to the location of the meeting, no remote attendance will be available. 
 
AGENDA 
Items on the agenda may be taken out of order. The NACO Board may combine two or more agenda 
items for consideration. The NACO Board may remove an item from the agenda or delay discussion 
relating to an item on the agenda at any time.   
 
Call to Order, Roll Call and Pledge of Allegiance   
 

1. Public Comment. Please Limit Comments to 3 Minutes. 
 

2. Approval of Agenda. For Possible Action. 
 

3. Approval of Minutes of the September 29, 2021, NACO Annual Business Meeting. For 
Possible Action 
 

4. NACO President’s Report. 
 

5. NACO Executive Director’s Report.   
 

6. Election of NACO Officers for 2023. For Possible Action. 
 

7. Discussion on Proposed NACO Board Meeting Dates and Locations for 2023. For Possible 
Action.  
 

8. Public Comment.  Please Limit Comments to 3 Minutes. 
 
Adjournment. 
 
Members of the public who are disabled and require special accommodations or assistance at the 
meeting are requested to notify NACO in writing at 304 S. Minnesota Street, Carson City, NV 89703, 
or by calling (775) 883-7863 at least three working days prior to the meeting. 
 
Members of the public can request copies of the supporting material for the meeting by contacting 
Amanda Evans at (775) 883-7863. Supporting material will be available at the NACO office and on 
the NACO website at: www.nvnaco.org 
 
This agenda was posted at the following locations: 
NACO Office 304 S. Minnesota Street, Carson City, NV 89703 

mailto:info@nvnaco.org


Washoe County Admin. Building 1001 E. Ninth Street, Reno, NV 89520 
Elko County Manager’s Office 540 Court Street #101, Elko NV 89801 
POOL/PACT 201 S. Roop Street, Carson City, NV 89701 



NEVADA ASSOCIATION OF COUNTIES (NACO) 
Annual Business Meeting 

September 29, 2021, 8:00a.m. 
Fallon Old Post Office 

90 N. Main St. 
Fallon NV 89406 

Attendance: President Kirkpatrick, President Elect Lucey, Vice President Higbee, Past President 
French, Carson City Supervisor Giomi, Churchill County Commissioner Olsen, Douglas County 
Commissioner Gardner, Elko County Commissioner Andreozzi, Elko County Commissioner Brough, 
Elko County Commissioner Steninger, Esmeralda County Commissioner Keyes, Eureka County 
Commissioner Goicoechea, Lincoln County Commissioner Lister, Lyon County Commissioner 
Henderson, Lyon County Commissioner Keller, Mineral County Commissioner Hall, Pershing County 
Commissioner Shank, Washoe County Commissioner Hartung, White Pine County Commissioner 
Carson and NACO Staff (Vinson Guthreau) 

The meeting was called to order by President Kirkpatrick. 

1. Public Comment. Commissioner Olsen gave the Board an overview of the preservation of
the historic building, in which the meeting was taken place, and how the City of Fallon was
preserving other buildings in the town.

2. Approval of Agenda. The agenda was approved on a motion by Vice President Higbee with
second by Past President French.

3. Approval of Minutes of the November 19, 2020, NACO Annual Business Meeting. The
minutes were approved on a motion by Supervisor Giomi with second by Past President
French.

4. NACO President’s Report. President Kirkpatrick thanked those in attendance and
Churchill County for hosting the conference, specifically the President’s Reception held the
previous evening.

5. NACO Executive Director’s Report. Vinson gave a summary of the years activities,
including the Executive Director transition, activities during the legislative session, and
thanked the Board and the Subcommittees for their work. He discussed the recruitment and
hiring of open positions and the strong financial position the Association is in. He also
discussed the China Spring Working Group and the Committee to Study Innovation Zones
and continued efforts to support counties on several issues at the local, state and federal
level. Past President French inquired as to the status of the open Natural Resources
Manager position. Vinson reminded the Board that Jeremy Drew of Resource Concepts Inc.
is currently under contract to provide those services while the position is open. He noted
that the Public Lands Committee will pick their meetings up again in October. President
Kirkpatrick noted that the Association will likely lose a position on the National Board of
Directors and she is working with NACo to ensure that the Nevada voice remains important
and heard at the national level.

6. Election of NACO Officers for 2022. Vice President Higbee, as the Chair of the Nominating
Committee announced that they had selected Carson City Supervisor Giomi as the nominee

Agenda Item 3



for the office of Vice President. Vinson gave an overview of the by-laws and the process for 
the selection by the Committee for the Boards consideration. No floor nominations were 
given. Supervisor Giomi’s nomination was approved, and he was elected to the position on a 
roll call vote. 

7. Discussion on Proposed NACO Board Meeting Dates and Locations for 2022. Vinson
gave an overview of the proposed dates included in the agenda back up. He noted that the
calendar includes a meeting to be held in Clark County, as is Association tradition. He also
informed the Board that he included a meeting to be held in an Eastern Rural County, if it
was the pleasure of the Board, the actual location to be determined at a later date. President
Kirkpatrick inquired as to how the rural meeting location would be determined, Vinson
informed the Board that staff would work on determining a location for approval based
upon the spatial and technical requirements of the Board meeting. The calendar was
approved on a motion by Commissioner Olsen with second by Commissioner Shank.

8. Public Comment. None was given.

The meeting was adjourned by President Kirkpatrick. 



2023 NACO 
Calendar 

January 
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa 

2 3 4 5 6 
9 10 11 12 13 

16 17 18 19 20 
23 24 25 26 27 
30 31 1 2 3 

May 
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa 

1 2 3 4 5 
8 9 10 11 12 

15 16 17 18 19 
22 23 24 25 26 
29 30 31 1 2 

September 
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa 

28 29 30 31 1 
4 5 6 7 8 
11 12 13 14 15 
18 19 20 21 22 
25 26 27 28 29 

February 
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa 

30 31 1 2 3 
6 7 8 9 10 

13 14 15 16 17 
20 21 22 23 24 
27 28 1 2 3 

June 
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa 

29 30 31 1 2 
5 6 7 8 9 

12 13 14 15 16 
19 20 21 22 23 
26 27 28 29 30 

October 
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa 

2 3 4 5 6 
9 10 11 12 13 

16 17 18 19 20 
23 24 25 26 27 
30 31 1 2 3 

March 
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa 

27 28 1 2 3 
6 7 8 9 10 

13 14 15 16 17 
20 21 22 23 24 
27 28 29 30 31 

July 
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa 

26 27 28 29 30 

3 4 5 6 7 
10 11 12 13 14 
17 18 19 20 21 

24 25 26 27 28 
31 1 2 3 4 

November 
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa 

30 31 1 2 3 
6 7 8 9 10 

13 14 15 16 17 
20 21 22 23 24 
27 28 29 30 1 

April 
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa 

27 28 29 30 31 

3 4 5 6 7 
10 11 12 13 14 
17 18 19 20 21 

24 25 26 27 28 
1 2 3 4 5 

August 
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa 

31 1 2 3 4 
7 8 9 10 11 

14 15 16 17 18 
21 22 23 24 25 

28 29 30 31 1 

December 
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa 

27 28 29 30 1 
4 5 6 7 8 
11 12 13 14 15 
18 19 20 21 22 
25 26 27 28 29 
1 2 3 4 5

2 
9 

16 
23 
30 
6 

26 

3 
10 
17 
24 
31 

4 
11 
18 
25 
2 

29 

5 
12 
19 
26 

7 
14 
21 
28 
4 

1 
8 

15 
22 
29 

2 
9 

16 
23 
30 

27 

3 
10 
17 
24 

5 
12 
19 
26 
2 

30 

6 
13 
20 
27 

1 
8 

15 
22 
29 
5 

25 

2 
9 

16 
23 
30 

3 
10 
17 
24 

1 

28 

4 
11 
18 
25 

6 
13 
20 
27 
3 

30 

7 
14 
21 
28 

1 
8 

15 
22 
29 
6 

26 

2 
9 

16 
23 
30 

4 
11 
18 
25 

1 

26 

5 
12 
19 
26 

4 
11 
18 
25 
4 

29 

5 
12 
19 
26 

7 
14 
21 
28 
4 

1 
8 

15 
22 
29 

Legend 
National Association of Counties Conferences 
NACO Annual Conference – Elko County 
Nevada Legislature – Important Dates 
NACO Offices Closed 
NACO Board Meetings 
Proposed Board Meeting in Clark County 

Agenda Item 7


	Storey County Courthouse Slammer
	26 South B Street
	Virginia City, NV 89440
	NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC: The public may provide public comment in advance of a meeting by written submission to the following email address: info@nvnaco.org For inclusion or reference in the minutes of the meeting, your public comment must include your f...
	AGENDA
	Call to Order, Roll Call and Pledge of Allegiance
	Adjournment.
	NACO Office 304 S. Minnesota Street, Carson City, NV 89703
	Elko County Manager’s Office 540 Court Street #101, Elko NV 89801
	ADPA1E9.tmp
	Attendance: President Kirkpatrick, President Elect Lucey, Vice President Higbee, Past President French, Carson City Supervisor Giomi, Churchill County Commissioner Olsen, Douglas County Commissioner Gardner, Elko County Commissioner Andreozzi, Elko Co...
	The meeting was called to order by President Kirkpatrick.

	ADPA0C.tmp
	January
	May
	September
	February
	June
	October
	March
	July
	November
	April
	August
	December

	NACO BOD Agenda Annual Business Mtg 2022.pdf
	Storey County Courthouse Slammer
	26 South B Street
	Virginia City, NV 89440
	NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC: The public may provide public comment in advance of a meeting by written submission to the following email address: info@nvnaco.org For inclusion or reference in the minutes of the meeting, your public comment must include your f...
	AGENDA
	Call to Order, Roll Call and Pledge of Allegiance
	Adjournment.
	NACO Office 304 S. Minnesota Street, Carson City, NV 89703
	Elko County Manager’s Office 540 Court Street #101, Elko NV 89801




